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Under Sect
ion 142 of the 
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1.0 Chief Executive Statement

The objective of the Council’s Annual Report is to provide general information about the Council and its functioning.  It also provides an insight into the nature and costs of services offered by the Municipal Council of Quatre Bornes.  It highlights the main achievements of individual services in the year 2012 and aspirations for the future years. 
Pursuant to section 142 of the Local Government Act 2011, I have the honour to submit the Annual Report and a copy of the Director of Audit Report for the period 1st January 2012 to 31st December 2012. 

I am also submitting the Audit Report for the year ending 31 December 2011 as well as a copy of the Internal Audit Plan which includes the areas covered during the audit and details regarding the number of report submitted by the Internal Audit Section of the Municipal Council.

R Manna

Acting Chief Executive

1.1
Mayor’s Statement

It is with great honour and privilege that we are presenting the Annual Report of the Municipal Council of Quatre Bornes for the period 1st January to 31st December 2012.

In 2012, apart from the on-going services, for security reasons the extension of street lighting and the purchase of one street lighting lorry became necessary.

For sanitary reasons some 20,000 plastic bins were purchased and distributed to all households paying municipal tax. Leisure sites were set up and enhanced.

After municipal elections in December 2012, a new team of Councillors were elected, which had to deal immediately with several major long standing problems and representations.

At the Municipal Council of Quatre Bornes the budget was drastically reduced by the Ministry of Local Government to some 40% of what it was previously.  The new team had to manage satisfactory financial readjustments so as not to penalise cultural, senior, sports and feminine associations while maintaining our service to the inhabitants.

In the Scavenging Section, in 2012 following the recruitment of 89 unskilled labourers, scavenging service in part of the town was taken over from private contractor and had to be given to in-house labourers.  Many lorries were not in good working condition, so four lorries had to be purchased for 2013 and two additional ones from Central Government had to be sought.  Scavenging planning on a weekly basis had to be worked out and proper staffing sought.

The smooth running of the Council is being affected due to the fact that vacant posts in various grades were not being filled timely. 

Traffic jams, road works by WWM were bringing additional stress and pollution to the town.  The team decided immediately to bring motions for the setting up of the regional markets to decentralise and alleviate traffic congestion.

With the opening of the Food Court, which had to be renovated and made operational so that all vendors would have the chance to work in hygienic and legal frameworks, we expect that the problem of illegal vendors be resolved.

Talks, forums and events had to be organised to sensitise the population about the need to live in a clean and green environment. The fight against immorality, insecurity and pollution will have to be strengthened in 2013.

MRS. D. ROOMA MEETOO

Her Worship The Mayor
2.0 Mission, Vision and Value Statement

Our Mission

To ensure a timely and quality service to all stakeholders and to improve the quality of life of the citizens of the town. 

Our Vision

To be a living model in partnership and networking with its stakeholders for the highest standards of excellence and an unrivalled quality of life.

Our Core Values

· Professionalism: To be committed to work ethics, confidentiality, impartiality and discipline
· Service Excellence: To be committed at every level to provide the highest service excellence
· Teamwork: To foster team spirit between all employees, departments and the Council.
· Integrity: To be guided by a positive set of attitudes which foster honest and ethical behaviour and work practice.
· Timeliness: To be committed to delivering services within the least possible delay
Our Commitment

To continuously maintain a high standard of service and to be proactive in providing facilities and  improve the quality of public services offered and ensure that such services respond to the needs and wishes of the citizens.

3.0 About the Municipal Council of Quatre Bornes

Location: Saint Jean Road Quatre Bornes
Web Site:  http://www.qb.mu

Email:  mcqb@intnet.mu

Fax:454-6209

Tel:4548054

Customer Care Centre/ Hotline: 454 9662
The town of Quatre-Bornes was created by an Ordinance which was passed in 1895 but coming into force in 1896.  From the time of its creation till 1950, it was governed by a fully nominated Board of Commissioners, consisting a Chairman and 5 members.

The Town Council Ordinance 1950, democratised the institution of Board by incorporating a provision by which members were to be elected by the community.  Yet, it remained a system of nomination with 3 nominated members and 7 elected members.

With the Local Government Ordinance of 1962, each of the towns including Quatre Bornes had 12 elected and 4 nominated members.

In 1968, when Mauritius got its independence, the Town Council became Municipality and since then all Councillors have to be elected.

The Municipal Council of Quatre-Bornes is presently made up of 15 Councillors (5 wards each electing 3 members).

The town of Quatre-Bornes extends over an area of about 2,122 Ha add it is served by an urban road network of some 300 Kilometres which is being extended each year.
Situated in the central part of Mauritius, Quatre-Bornes is easily accessible. It has a higher population growth rate, due to the fact that internal migration made it possible because of its cool climatic conditions, low humidity rate, and it is situated on the central plateau. Another characteristic of Quatre-Bornes is that it is attracting young population professionals.

The town that was mainly a residential place is slowly evolving into an industrial, administrative and a place of commerce and business. 

Quatre-Bornes consists of the 'Old Quatre-Bornes' on the one hand which comprise regions like Belle-Rose, Telfair, Drapers, D'Epinay and on the other hand the new Quatre-Bornes which started its development in the 1980s in the region of Sodnac. The region of Ebene with the Cybercity is also part of Quatre Bornes 

Urban development itself started in the late 1960s when the Trianon Sugar Estate, sold its land properties, and attracted a new social class, nowadays known as the Morcellement St-Jean.

3.1 Historical development of the Town 

The town of Quatre-Bornes, ‘City of Flowers’ has its history dating back to more than two centuries, it started as such:

· In 1740, during French colonization, the cartography of Pierre Guyomar indicated the ‘quartiers des Plaines-Wilhems’, which depicted Quatre-Bornes as a forest  region that was being colonized.

· In 1764, Joseph Francois Charpentier de Cossigny settled in a region that he named Palma, and in the same period the Governor Antoine Desforges Boucher settled in a region, which he named Bassin.

· Around 1768-70, the novelist Bernardin de St. Pierre, was inspired to write ‘Paul et Virginie’, in which mention is made of the Trois Mammelles Mountain, the ‘watercress’ plants near a river (namely the river Rempart).

· In 1850: construction of the St-Jean Church.

· With the introduction of the railway line in 1864, the region of Plaines-Wilhems developed at a rapid pace, and as such the people living on the coastal regions migrated to the inner regions, one of them being Quatre-Bornes.

· In 1870s the cartographer Descubes mentioned the name of Quatre-Bornes for the first time on a map.

· In 1890, Quatre-Bornes was declared village by proclamation No.49, with effect as from 1877.

· In 1895, the Ordinance act 32 stated that the board of commissioners will consists of 6 members. Honorable Sir William Newton K.C. became the first president in 1896. Quatre-Bornes was proclaimed Town under a proclamation of the governor p.i  Charles Anthony King Harman, C.M.G.

· In 1904 was founded the Convent of Quatre-Bornes, which was to become the Loreto convent of Quatre-Bornes, secondary institution for girls.

· In 1941, the Quatre-Bornes Market was built.

· In 1954 the Council took the decision to build the ‘Cite Beau-Sejour and ‘Cite Pere Laval’

· The 1960s , saw the development of the Morcellement St Jean

· In 1967, the region of Bassin and Palma were annexed to form part of the town itself by Proclamation No.2, Government Notices,1967.

· In the mid-1980s Quatre-Bornes developed at a rapid pace, with the implantation of the George Town commercial complex, the Orchard complex, Candos commercial complex, which provide shopping facilities, supermarket, cinema, drug stores etc.

· In the 1980s - 1990s, the development of Sodnac region name given by the fact that the region was situated opposite the other side of the Candos Hill, so Sodnac derives from Candos written in the opposite way.

· 9th May 1984:Inauguration by Mr F. Canabady, the then Mayor, of a crossroad at Palma, plot of land donated  to the Municipality by the Jugnauth family.

· In 1987, the region of  La source was annexed to the town  of Quatre-Bornes..

· Then in the 1990's, other commercial complex appeared such as Discovery House, Newry Complex, Orbis Court, France Centre, Buswell Centre, Flora Park, Middle town Shopping Centre.

· Recent developments include theTrianon Shopping Park , the Ebene Cybercity and the Mauritius Commercial Bank Building at St. Jean and high rise buildings along St Jean Road.
3.2 How Quatre-Bornes was attributed its name

Four hypothesis are used to explain the name of Quatre-Bornes : 

1.  According to a map prepared by Descubes in 1880,  Quatre-Bornes has been attributed its name, upon the four boundary stones (Bornes) which delimited the  land properties of Palma, Bassin, Trianon and Beau-Sejour. And this hypothesis is the one which is mostly sustained.

2.  Another hypothesis, was instituted by a Mauritian Historian, who said that four boundary stones (Bornes) delimited the three districts, namely Plaines Wilhems, Moka and Riviere Noire.

3.  In November 1761, two land owners namely Mr. Mabille and Mr. Desveaux were having land problems and this case was ultimately known as 'Le cas des Quatre-Bornes'.

As W.Edward Hart explained in1921, four boundary stones used to delimit the intersection between the roads crossing Vacoas and Basssin/Palma and La Louise and of the Balisage separating the land property of La Louise and Beau Sejour.

4.  Quatre Bornes has been named so, in relation to a 'commune' in France.

3.3 The Coat of Arms- URBS FLORIDA
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In 1955 Mr. R. Hein wrote the motto ‘URBS Florida’ which meant Quatre-Bornes ‘la Ville des Fleurs’. In the same year Mr. Max Boulle drew the arms of the town at the request of the Board. The arms consisted of the four ‘Bornes’ and of three flowers.

In 1964, the Municipal Council of Quatre-Bornes willing to pay tribute to Mr. De Candos who gave his name to a hill, a hospital, a road slope (montee Candos), a stadium, and a housing state, decided that the Lys Flower which decorated his arms would be represented on the arms of the town Quatre-Bornes.

3.4 Salient features of the town



- Ebène Cybercity
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Mauritius Football Association “MFA House” in Trianon
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- Trianon Barracks (most significant material remains of the Indentured Labour System in Mauritius) According to historical documents, the complex was erected during the second half of the 19th Century


3.5   Twinning

The Town of Quatre Bornes is twinned with the 
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·  “Communes de St Benoit” of Reunion Island (since 03rd August 1988) -

 http://www.saint-benoit.re/
·  “Communes de Ambalavao” in Madagascar (since 17th 1994)- http://www.ambalavao.net/#TONGA_SOA.A
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· “City of Daqing” Heilongjiang China (since 31ST May 2008)
http://scenery.cultural-china.com/en/147Scenery7375.html
4. Roles and Functions of Committees 

4.1 Council Membership

Mayor, Deputy Major and Councillors

Municipal Elections were held on 9th December 2012 following which the present Council members took office on 20th December 2012.

The Municipal Council of Quatre Bornes is composed of 15 elected members from 5 wards. The Mayor and Deputy Mayor are elected by the Council to serve for a period of two years. The Council is administered in accordance by the Local Government Act 2011 amongst other acts.
	1
	Mrs D.Rooma Meetoo
	Mayor

	2
	Mr Danen Darajen BEEMADOO, Deputy Mayor
	Deputy Mayor

	3
	Mr Premanand Parsad BEEDASY
	Councillor

	4
	Mrs Shakuntala BOOLELL
	Councillor

	5
	Miss Marie Alexandra Tania DIOLLE
	Councillor

	6
	Mr Shankar Tarachand GAYA
	Councillor

	7
	Mr Reza GUNNY
	Councillor

	8
	Mr Maheswarsingh KHEMLOLIVA
	Councillor

	9
	Mrs Marie Claire Vianney MALHERBE-FINNISS
	Councillor

	10
	Mrs Rambha RAMKALAWON
	Councillor

	11
	Mrs Dhanwantee RAMKOOMAR
	Councillor

	12
	Mrs Sookwantee RUCNAJEE
	Councillor

	13
	Mr Guy Emmanuel TROYLUKHO
	Councillor

	14
	Mr Raj GAYA
	Councillor

	15
	Mrs Poonum THYLAM
	Councillor


The term of office of the previous Council ended on 20th November 2012 and members were as follows:

	1
	Mrs Marie Désirée Ariane OXENHAM
	Mayor

	2
	Mr Premanand Parsad BEEDASY
	Deputy Mayor

	3
	Mr Ramakrishna APPADU
	Councillor

	4
	Mr Nardeo BADREE
	Councillor

	5
	Mr Ally Naushad Khan BATCHKHAN
	Councillor

	6
	Mr Nirendranath Kumar CHADY
	Councillor

	7
	Mr Yaganaden Pillay GOOROOSAMY
	Councillor

	8
	Mr Guru Gungabissoon
	Councillor

	9
	Mr Michel France LAYOVE
	Councillor

	10
	Mr Mohammud Reshad LOTUN
	Councillor

	11
	Mr Vasoodeuven MOOTHOOSAMY
	Councillor

	12
	Mr Chetanand PURSUN
	Councillor

	13
	Mr Ramesh Anand RAJKOOMAR


	Councillor

	14
	Mr Sanjaysingh RAMLUGUN
	Councillor

	15
	Mr Leckraj RUGHOOPUTH
	Councillor

	16
	Mr Idriss SAKHABUTH
	Councillor

	17
	Mr Roshan Munee SEETOHUL
	Councillor


ADMINISTRATIVE TEAM

	Administration Department
	Acting Chief Executive
Mr R Manna

	Finance Department

	Financial Controller

Mr S Veerasamy

	Public Infrastructure Department

	Head Public Infrastructure Department

Mr K. Domah

	Public Health Department
	Chief Health Inspector

Mr V Veerasamy

	Land Use and Planning Department
	Head Land Use and Planning Department

MrS Jeetun

	Welfare Department
	Chief Welfare Officer

Mr C Jhamna


Setting up of Committees

(a) Council Meeting

Chairperson: Her Worship the Mayor 

Vice Chairperson: The Deputy Mayor 

The Municipal Council is made up of elected councillors from different wards of the Town. The Council is the policy making body of the Municipality. As required under Section 45 of the Local Government Act 2011 the Council meets as often as the business may require and at least every fortnight in the Council Chamber for the formulation of policies and examination of all matters pertaining to the administration of the Town.
(b) Executive Committee
As per Section 48 of the Local Government Act 2011, the Executive Committee is responsible for the determination of applications for Outline Planning Permissions and Building and Land Use Permits and for the approval of the procurement of goods and services exceeding Rs100,000.

· Period January to 20th November 2012
Chairperson: Her Worship the Mayor - Mrs Marie Désirée Ariane Oxenham
Vice Chairperson: The Deputy Mayor - Mr Premanand Parsad Beedasy
Members: 5 Councillors

	1.
	Councillor Mr Ramakrishna Appadu

	2.
	Councillor Mr Ally Naushad Khan Batchkhan

	3.
	Councillor Nirendranath Kumar Chady

	4.
	Councillor Mr Guru Gungabissoon

	5.
	Councillor Mr Leckraj Rughooputh


· Period 21st December to 31st December 2012

Chairperson: Her Worship the Mayor - Mrs Rooma D. Meetoo
Vice Chairperson: The Deputy Mayor – Mr Danen Darajen Beemadoo
Members: 5 Councillors

	1.
	Councillor Mr Reza Gunny

	2.
	Councillor Mr Raj Gaya 

	3.
	Councillor Miss Marie Alexandra Tania Diolle  

	4.
	Councillor Mr Maheshwarsing Khemloliva

	5.
	Councillor Mrs Dhanwantee Ramkoomar 


 (c) Procurement Committee

As per section 160 of the Local Government Act 2011 the procurement of goods and services shall be effected by the local authority in accordance with the provisions of the Public Procurement Act.

Any procurement of goods and services by a local authority shall be determined by a Procurement Committee composed of:

(a) The Chief Executive or his Deputy;

(b) The Financial Controller or his Deputy; and

(c) One senior officer in charge of a department other than that of the Chief Executive or the Financial Controller, and shall require the approval of the Executive Committee of the Council, where the total value of the procurement exceeds 100,000 rupees, or such amount as may be prescribed.

The Procurement activities at the Council are undertaken in line with the Public Procurement Act 2006 and subsequent directives issued by the Procurement Policy Office. In fact all bidding exercisesare carried out in a transparent, confidential and structured manner to ensure compliance with existing procurement legislations. It is ensured that Bidding document specifications are written in such a manner to avoid ambiguities, and the evaluation criteria defined therein are fair and appropriate to determine the lowest evaluated bid. 

A Bid Evaluation Committee is set up on the same day that bids are opened by the Chairman of the Bid Opening Committee. Bids are evaluated according to pre-determined evaluation criteria and in all independence.

(d) Public Infrastructure Committee
· Role and Specific Functions delegated to the Public Infrastructure Committee(Terms of reference)

The Public Infrastructure Committee of this Council shall be morefully described as the Works 
Organisation, Maintenance, Street Lighting Committee, and shall have the powers and duties to hear, 
examine and consider the following:
(a)
The construction, repairs and maintenance of the Municipal Council’s Buildings and Housing Estates, Streams and Canals, Roads, Drains, Absorption Drains, Footpaths

(b)
Prepare designs and specifications for Works to be contracted out.

(c)
The Lighting of the Municipal Council’s buildings, streets, gardens, housing estates and other places;

(d)
Service and reception of notices, institution and conduct of all legal proceedings as and when required.

(e)
The prevention and removal of obstructions on municipal roads.

(f)
The provision and maintenance of traffic signs and signals, pedestrian crossings and road markings.

2.
The Public Infrastructure Committee shall consider matters relating to the proper functioning of the workshop, viz:

(a) To consider and recommend to the Council on matters pertaining to :

i) Stock and purchase of spare parts;

ii) Replacement of vehicles, plants and equipment;

(b) Workforce at the workshop;

3.
All decisions of the Public Infrastructure Committee shall be approved by the Council.
· Members of the Public Infrastructure Committee (Period 21st December to 31st December 2012)

	1.
	Her worship the Mayor- Mrs D.Rooma Meetoo

	2.
	The Deputy Mayor- Mr Danen Darajen BEEMADOO,

	3.
	Councillor Mr Reza Gunny - Chairperson

	4.
	Councillor Mr Raj Gaya - Vice Chairperson

	5.
	Councillor Miss Marie Alexandra Tania Diolle  

	6.
	Councillor Mr Shankar Tarachand Gaya

	7.
	Councillor Mr Maheshwarsing Khemloliva

	8.
	Councillor Mrs Dhanwantee Ramkoomar 


· Members of the Public Infrastructure Committee (Period January to 20th November 2012)

1. Her Worship the Mayor - Mrs Marie Désirée Ariane Oxenham

2. Councillor Mr Mohammud Reshad LOTUN- Chairperson
3. Councillor Mr Nirendranath Kumar CHADY- Vice Chairperson
4. Councillor Mr Ramakrishna APPADU 

5. Councillor Mr Ally Naushad Khan BATCHKHAN

6. Councillor Mr Yaganaden Pillay GOOROOSAMY

7. Councillor Mr Guru GUNGABISSOON

8. Councillor Mr Leckraj RUGHOOPUTH

9. Councillor Mr Idriss SAKHABUTH

(e)Public Health Committee
· Role and Specific Functions delegated to the Public Health Committee (Terms of reference) 

The Public Health Committee which shall be morefully described as the Public Health, Markets, and 
Fairs, Cemeteries and Crematoria Committee shall have the following powers and duties:

(i)
To hear, examine and consider the following matters within the Municipal area of Quatre Bornes and make necessary recommendations thereon to the Council:

(a)
Public Health and General Sanitation.

(b)
Scavenging and Weeding services including the cleansing of streams and drains; the provision of public conveniences.

(c)
Cleansing of premises, that may be prejudicial to health.

(d)
Factories, piggeries, cowsheds and offensive trades.

(e)
Nuisances occurrence and abatement.

(f)
Restaurants, shops and premises used for the preparation, storage and sale of food.

(g)
Sale of meat, butcher’s shop, slaughter houses, markets 

           and fairs.

(h)
The Municipal Council’s Crematoria and incinerator.

(i)
Health education of the public.

(j)
Service and reception of notices and initiation of all legal proceedings in respect of matters within the Committee’s terms of reference. 

2.
To consider any other matter which may legitimately fall within the province of

 Public Health and Environment.

3.
(a)
To hear and examine all matters pertaining to environment within the 

Municipal area and take the relevant steps.

(b)
To prepare and formulate regulations,  programmes and plans which aim at protecting, preserving and promoting the natural and physical environment of the town to enhance the quality of life.

(c)
To prevent pollution in natural water courses and any other form of
 pollution and to take and implement decisions on the creation of green spaces.

(d)
To decide on all matters pertaining to the cleaning of wastelands.

(e)
To implement the aforesaid programmes and plans separately or jointly with relevant Authorities/Organisations/ Enforcing Agencies.

4.
The Public Health Committee shall have the powers to invite officers from the Ministry of Environment to work jointly with the Municipal Council with a view to formulating and implementing Environmental programmes and projects.

5.
To work jointly with the Central Government in order to:

(a)
Protect and restore the Environment thereby preventing Environment degradation;

(b)
Enhance the quality of the physical environment;

(c)
Engage public awareness campaigns on issues of Environment and the ecosystem including environmental education of the public.

6.
All decisions of the Public Health Committee shall be approved by the Council.

· Members of the Public Health Committee (Period 21st December to 31st December 2012)
	1.
	Her worship the Mayor- Mrs D.Rooma Meetoo

	2.
	Councillor Mr Maheshwarsing Khemloliva - Chairperson

	3.
	Councillor Miss Marie Alexandra Tania Diolle  - Vice Chairperson

	4.
	Councillor Mrs Marie Claire Vianney Malherbe- Finnis

	5.
	Councillor Mr Raj Gaya

	6.
	Councillor Mr Reza Gunny.

	7.
	Councillor Mrs Poonum Thylam

	8.
	Councillor Mr Premanand Parsad Beedasy


· Members of the Public Health Committee (Period January to 20th November 2012)

1. Her Worship the Mayor - Mrs Marie Désirée Ariane Oxenham
2. The Deputy Mayor - Mr Premanand Parsad BEEDASY

3.Councillor Mr Vasoodeuven MOOTHOOSAMY- Chairperson
4. Councillor Mr Ramesh Anand RAJKOOMAR  - Vice Chairperson
5. Councillor Mr Ramakrishna APPADU 

6. Councillor Mr Nardeo BADREE

7. Councillor Mr Guru GUNGABISSOON

8. Councillor Mr Michel France LAYOVE



9.CouncillorMr Sanjaysingh RAMLUGUN
(f) Welfare Committee
· Role and Specific Functions delegated to the Public Health Committee (Terms of reference) 

The Welfare Committee shall be morefully described as the Public Welfare, Public Entertainment, 
Leisure Social Services, Theatre and Reception Hall Committee and shall have the following duties 
and powers:

1.
To consider and make recommendations on all matters relating to:

(a)
Public Entertainment and Public Welfare including:

(i) The provision of entertainment;

(ii)
The provision of Community/Social Centres in view of extending social, recreative, cultural, literary  and educational opportunities;

(iii)
The provisions for the care of children and poor people;

(iv)
Planning and management of all public children playgrounds including kindergartens and nurseries.

(b)
The control and management of the Theatre, Reception Hall, Le Pavillon Hall,  ‘’Le Centre de Vacances et de Loisirs’’ , SSR Art Gallery and the Guy Rozemont Stadium and other Municipal Sports Infrastructures.

(c)
 (i) 
The provision, planning and management of centres for use of

                      clubs,  societies or organisations involved in social activities.

(ii)
The co-ordination of youth activity in the town.

(d)
Social Services.

The service and reception of notices and institution of legal proceedings in  respect of matters within the Committee’s terms of reference.

(f)
The control and management of Municipal Housing Estates and other buildings let for private and commercial purposes.


To take decisions relative to matters concerning lease and provisionof loan  stores.

(h)
The preparation and formulation of programmes, projects and activities which aim at providing leisure to the inhabitants of the town.

(i) 
The provision of facilities to the inhabitants of the town with the view to            encouraging them to participate in the above-mentioned leisure programmes and activities.

(j)
To coordinate with the Central Government and to control refugee centres during and after cyclones and other natural calamities.

(k)
To be responsible for “pharmacies de garde” services.

(l)
Responsible for activities to be organised for and on behalf of the club des  enfants  de Quatre Bornes and the Conseil Municipal des Jeunes.

(m)
To be responsible for all catering services, except for Committee meetings.

2.
To consider any other matters which may legitimately fall within the province of Public Welfare.

3.
To carry out research with a view to preserving and promoting Arts and Culture and to submit to the Council its recommendations thereon, viz:

(a)
The preparation and formulation of programme which aim at preserving and/or promoting the ancestral values, customs and traditions in the fields of music, arts, language, food habits, etc in the town.

(b)
The impact of the development and technology, social, economic and other developments on the above mentioned cultural values, customs and traditions.

(c)
The preparation and formulation of programmes which aim at promoting and encouraging exchanges between the different cultures in the town.

(d)
The organisation of cultural activities with the view to implementing the 


programmes or plans recommended by the Committee.

(e)
The formulation of Arts and Cultural Activities.

(f)       To manage and supervise dressmaking courses and the Municipal Infant Schools and kindergartens.

4.
All decisions of the Welfare Committee shall be approved by the Council.

· Members of the Welfare Committee (Period 21st December to 31st December 2012)
	1.
	Her worship the Mayor- Mrs D.Rooma Meetoo

	2.
	Councillor Mrs Marie Claire Vianney Malherbe- Finniss - Chairperson

	3.
	Councillor Mrs Rambha Ramkalawon  - Vice Chairperson

	4.
	Councillor Mr Raj Gaya

	5.
	Councillor Mr Reza Gunny.

	6.
	Councillor Mr Maheshwarsing Khemloliva

	7.
	Councillor Mrs Sookwantee Rucnajee

	8.
	Councillor Mr Guy Emmanuel Troylukho


· Members of the Welfare Committee (Period January to 20th November 2012)

1. Her Worship the Mayor - Mrs Marie Désirée Ariane Oxenham

2. Councillor Mr Nardeo BADREE - Chairperson

3. Councillor Mr Ally Naushad Khan BATCHKHAN- Vice Chairperson
4. Councillor Mr Nirendranath Kumar CHADY

5. Councillor Mr Yaganaden Pillay GOOROOSAMY

6. Councillor Mr Mohammud Reshad LOTUN

7. Councillor Mr Chetanand PURSUN

8.Councillor Mr Leckraj RUGHOOPUTH
9. Councillor MrRoshan Munee SEETOHUL
5.0 Remuneration of Councillors

As per the provisions of the Local Government (Remuneration of Councillors) Regulations 2013 effective as from 25th January 2013, monthly remuneration/allowancesderived by the Mayor, the Deputy Mayor and Councillors are as follows:
	Sn
	Councillors as per functions occupied
	Monthly remuneration paid to Councillors as per Local Government (Remuneration of Councillors) Regulations 2013

Reviewed after PRB report 2013
	Monthly telephone allowance

issued as prepaid cards
	Monthly transport Allowance

	1
	Mayor
	Rs35,400
	Rs2,000
	Rs13,000 as petrol allowance

	2
	Deputy Mayor
	Rs17,850
	Rs1,500
	Rs10.30/km mileage allowance covering from residence to Town Hall (to attend Council and other meetings)

	3
	Councillors who are members of the Executive Committee
	Rs10,980
	Rs1,000
	

	4
	Councillors
	Rs9,000
	Rs500
	


Remuneration of Councillors for the year 2012 were as follows:

	Sn
	Councillors as per functions occupied
	Monthly remuneration paid to Councillors as per Local Government (Remuneration of Councillors) Regulations 2013
	Monthly telephone allowance

issued as prepaid cards
	Monthly transport Allowance

	1
	Mayor
	Rs29,000
	Rs2,000
	Rs13,000 as petrol allowance

	2
	Deputy Mayor
	Rs14,600
	Rs1,500
	N/A

	3
	Councillors who are members of the Executive Committee
	Rs9,000
	Rs1,000
	N/A

	4
	Councillors
	Rs7,400
	Rs500
	N/A


6.0 Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance by definition being the system by which corporations are directed and controlled and the Municipal Council has continuously put in placerobust systems and processes, while observing high standards of behavior in the day to day administration of the Council affairs.

The coreareas through which the Municipal Council has tried to ensure compliance with the above principles of Corporate Governance as prescribed in the recommendations from the Code of Corporate Governance of Mauritius may be demonstratedthrough the following:

· Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing risk

While ensuring that decisions are taken in a robust and fair manner and in line with existing regulations in place, the Municipal Council also warrants that every Council decision or executive decision is well documented and easily traceable.

Furthermore necessary actions are being taken to ensure strict compliance with the relevant legislations including the Local Government Act 2011 more particularly Section 50 which spells out the Functions of the Municipal Council. 

· Promoting the values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behavior
By focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the community and creating and implementing a vision for the local area the Council provides services, which are essential for maintaining sound and healthy living conditions within the areas under its jurisdiction.  
It also organises and promotes activities in the fields of education, culture, sports and recreation as well as provides amenities aimed at the general well-being of the citizens. 
While discharging our duties, we have tried to maintain a reasonable standard of efficiency in the delivery of services as well as development that commensurate with the status of a town. 
· Councillors and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions and roles
· Developing the capacity and capability of councillors and officers to be effective
· Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability.

7.0 Trends and Challenges
(a) Trends

An appraisal of the Council performance in the delivery of services reveals the following:

Strengths:

1. The Council is geared by a team of dedicated councillors who are striving for the welfare and betterment of the residents of Quatre Bornes.

2. The Administration is managed by experienced cadres.

3. The township comprises various “poche” areas such as Ebene Cybercity, Trianon, Sodnac, thereby attracting more and more residents in its township.

4. The Quatre Bornes Market is renown worldwide and attracts both locals and tourists.

5. The town is equipped with various amenities providing sports and leisure facilities to its residents.

Weaknesses
1. Vacant posts not filled are affecting the smooth running of the Council.

2. part of the fleet of scavenging lorries needs to be renewed.

3. the abolition of tenant tax coupled with the decrease in government grant has affected the ……………………..

4. Staff mobility within Councils
5. Persistent traffic jams in the town centre during peak hours.

6. The Quatre Bornes Market is old.

Opportunities
1. The town is expanding and is attracting more and more residents and investors.

2. The Ebene Cybercity is located within the township

3. The advent of the Light Rail Transit system

4. Use of framework agreements to minimise procuring cost of certain goods

5. Composting and segregation of waste to reduce load of wastes transported to landfill stations

6. sewerage works will improve sanitation within the township
Threats

1. Central Government reducing grants

2. Proliferation of illegal sellers in the township

3. Other government agencies providing the same services as the Municipal Council

4. Economic operators might refuse to pay municipal fee due to presence of illegal sellers

5. Chronic traffic jams and absence of parking spaces might discourage people to visit the town

(b) Challenges

We are living in a world which has become a global village whereby the Council is also called upon to innovate and adapt.

Service delivery is expected to be improved within tighter schedules and with less financial resources.

The town is expanding rapidly with the development of new morcellement and high rise buildings.  This will put further stress on our road networks as well as scavenging service.

The Council is also considering  to set up four mini markets within its township with a view to decentralise the Quatre Bornes Market and simultaneously reduce traffic within the town centre.
The advent of the Light Road Transit System is also expected to reduce bus traffic within the township whilst bringing more comfort and safety to passengers.

The completion of sewerage works by the Wastewater Management Authority will enhance sanitation within the town.  Also, all roads where excavation works have been carried out will be resurfaced and  reinstated by the Authority to the satisfaction of the Council.

8.0 
MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF QUATRE BORNES
PART A: OVERVIEW OF MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF QUATRE BORNES
Major services to be provided (Outputs) 2012 – 2014
1. STRATEGIC NOTE

MAJOR ACHIEVEMENTS FOR July 2010 up to June 2011
1. Construction of multipurpose complex at Sodnac
2. Setting up of a foodcourt and toilet at Sir William Newton Avenue
3. Returfing, relevelling of football ground and construction of jogging track at La Source                                                                                                            4.Construction of football ground at Palma                                                                         
5.Fencing and CCTV at Jean Roland Delaitre Sports Complex
                                                    6.Construction of cloakroom at Ebène  

7. Lighting of football ground at Residence St Jean and Residence Kennedy 

8. Upgrading of children playgrounds

9.Construction 332 m of drains(Yr 2011)                                                                                                                        10.Construction 1186 m2 of roads(Yr 2011)                                                                                                   11.Fixing of 80 street lanterns(Yr 2011)



2. MAJOR SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED FOR 2012 – 2014
PROGRAMME: 1 - Policy and Management of the Council
· Implementation of Council’s decisions.

· Delivery of Programmes as laid down in the Programme - Based Budget.
· Collection of revenue including arrears

PROGRAMME 2 - Provision and Maintenance of community-based infrastructure and amenities

· Construction and maintenance of non-classified roads.

· Construction and maintenance of drains.
· Installation and maintenance of Street lighting points.
· Road marking and replacing and maintaining traffic signs.

· Maintenance of Council's assets e.g buildings, sports infrastructure, etc.
· Implementation of key infrastructure 
PROGRAMME 3 – Development Control within Council’s Areas
· Issue of building and land use permits

· Dissemination to citizens of guidelines relating to issue of permits.

· Ex Post Control
PROGRAMME: 4 - Sound and healthy conditions in the Council's area. 
· Refuse collection and their disposal.

· Cleaning of public places including bare lands.

·  Rodent and pest control.

· Information/Education and Communication (IEC)campaigns to local community
PROGRAMME 5 - Promotion of Sports, Welfare, Education and Cultural Development

· Organisation of Cultural and Social activities

· Organisation of Sports activities and support to sports clubs.

· Support to other clubs and associations.

· Managing pre - primary schools.
· Provision of educational, IT and literary and other facilities 
· Consolidation of centralised and decentralised library facilities

3. Major constraints and challenges and how they are bring addressed
MUNICIPAL FINANCE

Revenue

1. The actual quantum of the grant-in aid allocated to the Council will have to be reviewed to allow for a more realistic funding of municipal services.

2. Arrears of Revenue

Recovery of arrears is cumbersome and time consuming due to :

(a) Lack of timely information on change of ownership

(b) Debts are time barred hence resulting from loss of revenue

(c) Lengthy and costly procedures through private attorneys

(d) Clearances and certificates are no longer required for transfer of properties.

The laws and regulations have to be amended to ease the debt collection process.

The Land Administration, Valuation, Information, Management System (LAVIMS) project will also address issues regarding change of ownership and tracing out of owners of immovable properties.

Capital Expenditure

Drains

The provision of drains in the township is a major concern for both the Council and the Government.

A drainage system project is being implemented through funding from the Local Infrastructure Fund and National Development Unit.

Other challenges – Services

It is a challenge for the Council to maximize satisfaction of citizen by providing an efficient service and attending to complaints within 48 hrs.  Hence an information and Service Centre has been set up for that purpose.

A citizen charter has been set up for that purpose.

A citizen charter has been published and disseminated to citizens.

The Municipal website has been enhanced to facilitate communication with the citizens.

1. LIST OF PROGRAMMES, SUB-PROGRAMMES AND PRIORITY OBJECTIVES
PROGRAMME: 1 - Policy and Management of the Council
· Ensure that Municipal services are provided to the satisfaction of citizens. .  

· Ensure that resources allocated to Departments are used in a judiciously.  

· Ensure that Council’s policies are formulated and implemented within the framework of the Local Government Act and other laws.

· Exercise sound administrative and financial control.

·  Close monitoring of expenditure.

PROGRAMME 2 - Provision and Maintenance of community-based infrastructure and amenities
· Ensure the useful life of community based infrastructure is enhanced.

· Reduce flooding areas and ensure proper evacuation of running water through the construction and maintenance of drains.

· Provision of well accessed non classified roads with traffic signs and proper road marking.

PROGRAMME 3 – Development Control within Council’s Areas
· Ensure a harmonious and orderly development within the Council's area.

· Process and  issue of buildings and land use permits in a timely manner. 

PROGRAMME: 4 - Sound and healthy conditions in the Council's area. 
· The Collection and Removal and disposal of household, industrial, commercial and agricultural waste and other refuse.

· Management of public Markets and Fairs.

· Control of hawkers.

· Creation of a salubrious environment in the Council's area through the provision of an efficient refuse collection, regular cleaning and maintenance of public places such as open spaces, parks, gardens, bus shelters, public buildings including lavatories.

· Regular maintenance of drains and roads. 
PROGRAMME 5 - Promotion of Sports, Welfare, Education and Cultural Development

· Provision of social and cultural activities.

· Provision of free pre – primary education.

· Promotion of sports and support to local sports teams.

· Enhance literacy by facilitating access to books, magazines, internet etc… 

· Rehabilitation of playing grounds and green spaces.                                                                                                                              
	MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF QUATRE BORNES

	PART B: SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED (OUTPUTS) AND PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

	PROGRAMME MCQB 1: Policy and Management of the Council 

	

	Outcome(s): Improved quality of life of citizens through the provision of services that respond to their needs by exercising sound administrative and financial control.

	DELIVERY UNITS
	OUTPUTS     
	PERFORMANCE

	
	  [Services to be delivered]
	Indicators
	2012                    Target(s)                                    
	2013            Target(s)
	2014            Target(s)

	Chief Executive Department
	O1: Council's Policies implemented                                                                                                                                                                                   
	P1: Percentage of policy measures actually implemented
	90%
	90%
	90%

	
	O2: PBB delivery of Council's programmes     
	P2: Percentage of PBB indicators met
	80%
	85%
	85%

	
	O3: Attendance to complaints and suggestions   
	P3: Percentage response to public queries
	95%
	95%
	95%

	Finance  Department
	O4: Revenue estimates for budget formulated carefully to be close to actual   
	P4: Variance from actual not above
	10%
	10%
	10%

	
	O:5 Revenue Collection
	P5: Percentage reduction in outstanding debt/arrears
	10%
	10%
	10%

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	PROGRAMME MCQB 2: Provision and Maintenance of Community-Based Infrastructure and Amenities

	Outcome(s): Access to modern and well-maintained community infrastructure

	DELIVERY UNITS
	OUTPUTS     
	PERFORMANCE

	
	  [Services to be delivered]
	Indicators
	2012                    Target(s)                                    
	2013            Target(s)
	2014            Target(s)

	Works           Department
	O1: Construction and Maintenance of Roads
	P2: Area of roads constructed & maintained

	
	
	(1) Constructed
	3000 m2                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
	3000 m2                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
	3000 m2                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

	
	
	(2) Maintained
	10000 m2   
	10000 m2   
	10000 m2   

	
	O2: Construction and maintenance of drains
	P2: Length of drains constructed & maintained

	
	
	(1) Constructed
	1000 m                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
	1000 m                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
	1000 m                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

	
	
	(2) Maintained
	3000 m
	3000 m
	3000 m

	
	O3: Maintenance and installation of Street lighting points 
	P3:  Number of street lighting points installed & maintained 

	
	
	(1) Installed
	100
	100
	100

	
	
	(2) Maintained
	2000
	2000
	2000

	
	O4: Road marking and traffic signs fixed
	P7: Length of road marking effected and traffic signs fixed                             

	
	
	(1) Road marking
	1000 m                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
	1000 m                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
	1000 m                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

	
	
	(2) Traffic signs
	60
	75
	75

	
	O5: Maintenance of Council's assets e.g buildings, sports infrastructure etc
	P5: Percentage of  maintenance attended
	90%
	95%
	95%

	
	O6:Key infrastructure projects implemented
	P1: Number and Percentage completion of projects started

	
	
	 
	80%
	80%
	80%

	PROGRAMME MCQB 3: Development Control within the Council's area.

	Outcome(s): An harmonious and orderly development within the Council's area.

	DELIVERY UNITS
	OUTPUTS     
	PERFORMANCE

	
	  [Services to be delivered]
	Indicators
	2012                    Target(s)                                    
	2013            Target(s)
	2014            Target(s)

	Planning Department
	O1: Issue of buildings and land use permits
	P1: Percentage of applications processed
	98%
	98%
	98%

	
	O2: Ex post control
	P2: Percentage of new trading activities controlled                  
	55%
	60%
	60%

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	PROGRAMME MCQB 4: Sound and healthy conditions in the Council's area

	Outcome(s): To ensure that people are satisfied with the quality of service provision committed to by the Council

	DELIVERY UNITS
	OUTPUTS     
	PERFORMANCE

	
	  [Services to be delivered]
	Indicators
	2012                    Target(s)                                    
	2013            Target(s)
	2014            Target(s)

	Health and Environment Department
	O1: Refuse collection service.
	P1 : No of households and commercial places serviced per week

	
	
	(1) Households
	1
	1
	1

	
	
	(2)Commercial
	7
	7
	7

	
	O2: Cleaning public places (including green space, cemeteries,Traffic centres)
	P2: Frequency of cleaning operations carried out:                                                              

	
	
	1)Cemeteries,Public toilets and traffic centres
	Daily
	Daily
	Daily

	
	
	2) Green spaces and others
	weekly
	weekly
	weekly

	
	O3: Effective rodent and pest control
	P3:  Frequency of interventions effected/sites covered

	
	
	(1)Markets/Fairs
	weekly
	weekly
	weekly

	
	
	(2)Traffic Centres
	Fortnight
	Fortnight
	Fortnight

	
	04: Information/Education and Communication(IEC) 
	P4:No of IEC organised
	Twice yearly
	Twice yearly
	Twice Yearly

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	PROGRAMME MCQB 5: Promotion of sports, Welfare, Education and Cultural development.

	Outcome(s): To provide access to socially oriented and recreational activities.
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	DELIVERY UNITS
	OUTPUTS     
	PERFORMANCE

	
	  [Services to be delivered]
	Indicators
	2012                    Target(s)                                    
	2013            Target(s)
	2014            Target(s)

	Welfare Department
	O1: National festivities celebrATION
	P1: Number of cultural shows organised 
	15
	15
	15

	
	O2: Organisation of Sports activities 
	P2: Number of Sports activities organised                                 
	35
	35
	35

	
	 
	(1) Number of persons getting access to facilities being provided by the council
	8500
	8500
	8500

	
	
	(2) Number of children attending preprimary school run by the Council
	60
	60
	60


	III. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES BY PROGRAMMES AND SUB-PROGRAMMES

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Code
	Programmes and Sub-programmes
	 2011            Revised Estimates                                Rs 
	 2012              Estimates                      Rs 
	 2013         Planned                     Rs 
	 2014        Planned                     Rs 

	MCQB 1
	Policy and Management of the Council
	    105,505,783 
	    122,464,588 
	      112,717,450 
	    115,150,740 

	MCQB 2
	Provision and maintenance of                                  community-based infrastructure                                                   and amenities
	      75,157,328 
	      75,488,948 
	        73,077,240 
	      74,721,424 

	MCQB 3
	Development Control                                                    within Council's Area
	        4,563,048 
	        4,777,564 
	          4,889,500 
	        5,050,605 

	MCQB 4
	Sound and Healthy conditions                                           in the Council's area
	      69,096,302 
	    104,601,577 
	        73,307,805 
	      75,281,485 

	MCQB 5
	Promotion of Sports, Welfare,                                                             Education and cultural development
	      44,651,196 
	    140,427,606 
	        41,867,930 
	      43,112,265 

	 
	 Total 
	 298,973,657 
	447,760,283 
	   305,859,925 
	 313,316,519 

	
	
	
	
	
	

	IV. SUMMARY OF FUNDED POSITIONS BY PROGRAMMES AND SUB-PROGRAMMES
	

	Code
	Programmes and Sub-programmes
	 Total                               
	 % Distribution 

	
	
	2011
	2012
	2011
	2012

	MCQB 1
	Policy and Management of the Council
	                    91 
	                    97 
	12%
	11%

	MCQB 2
	Provision and maintenance of community-based infrastructure and amenities
	                  238 
	                  233 
	32%
	28%

	MCQB 3
	Development Control within Council's Area
	                    16 
	                    15 
	2%
	2%

	MCQB 4
	Sound and Healthy conditions in the Council's area
	                  290 
	                  388 
	39%
	46%

	MCQB 5
	Promotion of Sports, Welfare, Education and cultural development
	                  100 
	                  112 
	14%
	13%

	 
	 Total Funded Positions 
	                  735 
	                  845 
	100%
	100%

	
	
	
	
	
	

	PART C: INPUTS - FINANCIAL RESOURCES
	

	SUMMARY BY ECONOMIC CATEGORIES
	

	Code
	Economic Categories
	 2012              Estimates                      Rs 
	 2013         Planned                     Rs 
	 2014        Planned                     Rs 
	

	21
	Compensation of employees 
	    202,768,635 
	    207,311,075 
	      211,600,369 
	

	22
	Goods & services 
	      80,558,420 
	      74,028,820 
	        76,595,620 
	

	26
	Grants
	        1,515,000 
	        1,515,000 
	          1,515,000 
	

	27
	Social Benefits 
	      21,913,842 
	      22,500,000 
	        23,100,000 
	

	28
	Other expense 
	               4,386 
	               5,030 
	                 5,530 
	

	31
	Non-Financial Assets 
	    141,000,000 
	           500,000 
	             500,000 
	

	32
	Financial Assets 
	                     -   
	                     -   
	                       -   
	

	 
	 Total 
	 447,760,283 
	 305,859,925 
	   313,316,519 
	

	SUMMARY FOR YEAR 2012
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Code
	Programmes 
	 Compensation of Employees  Rs  
	 Goods and Services            Rs               
	 Social Benefits/Grant/Other /Expenses         Rs                  
	 Acquisition of Assets                        Rs                     

	MCQB 1
	Policy and Management of the Council
	      76,124,696 
	      12,501,020 
	        21,838,872 
	      12,000,000 

	MCQB 2
	Provision and maintenance of community-based infrastructure and amenities
	      38,333,948 
	      32,155,000 
	                       -   
	        5,000,000 

	MCQB 3
	Development Control within Council's Area
	        4,410,564 
	           367,000 
	                       -   
	                             -   

	MCQB 4
	Sound and Healthy conditions in the Council's area
	      61,783,077 
	      18,818,500 
	                               -   
	      24,000,000 

	MCQB 5
	Promotion of Sports, Welfare, Education and cultural development
	      22,116,350 
	      16,716,900 
	          1,594,356 
	    100,000,000 

	 
	 Total 
	 202,768,635 
	   80,558,420 
	     23,433,228 
	 141,000,000 

	Programme MCQB 1: Policy and Management of the Council

	Item No.
	Details
	 2011            Revised Estimates                                Rs 
	 2012   Estimates                                  Rs 
	 2013         Planned                     Rs 
	 2014        Planned                     Rs 

	21
	Compensation of employees
	    74,616,944 
	    76,124,696 
	     77,491,400 
	    79,134,690 

	21110
	Personal Emoluments
	      49,452,920 
	      48,496,446 
	        49,221,000 
	      50,125,390 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	21110001
	Basic Salary
	      26,989,200 
	      26,182,200 
	        26,285,000 
	      26,760,000 

	21110002
	Salary Compensation
	        2,000,000 
	        1,416,600 
	          1,500,000 
	        1,500,000 

	21110003
	Extra Remuneration
	        1,640,520 
	        2,160,404 
	          2,178,400 
	        2,234,300 

	21110004
	Allowances
	        3,423,200 
	        3,437,200 
	          3,457,600 
	        3,481,090 

	21110006
	Sick leave Refund
	        3,000,000 
	        4,200,000 
	          4,300,000 
	        4,400,000 

	21110009
	End of year bonus
	      12,400,000 
	      11,100,042 
	        11,500,000 
	      11,750,000 

	21111
	Other staff costs 
	        5,754,024 
	        7,168,944 
	          7,470,400 
	        7,609,300 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	21111002
	Travelling and Transport
	        2,679,024 
	        2,788,944 
	          2,910,400 
	        2,949,300 

	21111100
	Overtime
	           750,000 
	           555,000 
	             635,000 
	           635,000 

	21111200
	Staff Welfare
	           825,000 
	           825,000 
	             825,000 
	           825,000 

	21111300
	Passage Benefits
	        1,500,000 
	        3,000,000 
	          3,100,000 
	        3,200,000 

	21210
	Social Contributions
	      19,410,000 
	      20,459,306 
	        20,800,000 
	      21,400,000 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	21210001
	Contribution to the "National Savings Fund"/ National Pension & Savings Fund etc
	        2,200,000 
	        2,288,392 
	          2,350,000 
	        2,400,000 

	21210002
	Contribution to Family Protection Scheme
	        2,300,000 
	        2,366,808 
	          2,450,000 
	        2,500,000 

	21210003
	Contribution to Pension Fund
	      14,910,000 
	      15,804,106 
	        16,000,000 
	      16,500,000 

	22
	Goods & services
	   12,088,809 
	    12,501,020 
	      12,826,020 
	    13,016,020 

	22010
	Cost of Utilities
	        1,114,000 
	        1,114,000 
	          1,114,000 
	        1,114,000 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22010002
	Telephone
	        1,114,000 
	        1,114,000 
	          1,114,000 
	        1,114,000 

	22020
	Fuel and Oil
	             50,000 
	             50,000 
	               50,000 
	             50,000 

	22030
	Rent
	             25,000 
	                     -   
	                       -   
	                     -   

	22040
	Office Equipment and Furniture
	           580,000 
	           530,000 
	             570,000 
	           575,000 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22040001
	Office Equipment 
	           285,000 
	           265,000 
	             265,000 
	           270,000 

	22040002
	Office Furniture
	           295,000 
	           265,000 
	             305,000 
	           305,000 

	22050
	Office Expenses
	           850,000 
	           900,000 
	             925,000 
	           930,000 

	22060
	Maintenance
	        2,432,010 
	        2,852,010 
	          2,977,010 
	        3,082,010 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22060004
	Maintenance- Vehicles & Motorcycles
	           100,010 
	           100,010 
	             125,010 
	           150,010 

	22060005
	Maintenance- IT Equipment
	        2,330,000 
	        2,750,000 
	          2,850,000 
	        2,930,000 

	22060014
	Small Plants & Tools
	               2,000 
	               2,000 
	                 2,000 
	               2,000 

	22100
	Publications & Stationeries
	        1,635,000 
	        1,570,000 
	          1,595,000 
	        1,620,000 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22100003
	Printing & Stationery
	           965,000 
	        1,050,000 
	          1,075,000 
	        1,075,000 

	22100005
	Advertising
	           550,000 
	           400,000 
	             400,000 
	           425,000 

	22100006
	Publications 
	           120,000 
	           120,000 
	             120,000 
	           120,000 

	22110
	Overseas Travel
	        1,000,000 
	           900,000 
	             900,000 
	           900,000 

	22120
	Fees
	        1,625,010 
	        1,675,010 
	          1,675,010 
	        1,675,010 

	22900
	Other Goods & Services
	        2,777,789 
	        2,910,000 
	          3,020,000 
	        3,070,000 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22900031
	Entertainment
	           400,000 
	           300,000 
	             300,000 
	           300,000 

	22900035
	Social Activities
	           100,000 
	             80,000 
	             100,000 
	           100,000 

	22900038
	Insurance
	        1,415,000 
	        1,600,000 
	          1,675,000 
	        1,700,000 

	22900039
	Hired & Contracted Services
	           675,000 
	           735,000 
	             750,000 
	           775,000 

	22900099
	Miscellaneous  Expenses 
	           187,789 
	           195,000 
	             195,000 
	           195,000 

	27310
	Employer Social Benefits
	   18,800,000 
	   21,838,842 
	     22,400,000 
	   23,000,000 

	27310002
	Gratuities
	   18,800,000 
	      3,757,942 
	        3,900,000 
	      4,000,000 

	27310003
	Pensions
	                    -   
	   18,080,900 
	      18,500,000 
	   19,000,000 

	28
	Other Expense
	                   30 
	                   30 
	                     30 
	                   30 

	28300
	Miscellaneous Other Expenditure
	                    30 
	                    30 
	                      30 
	                    30 

	31
	Acquisition of Non-Financial Assets
	                    -   
	   12,000,000 
	                      -   
	                    -   

	31112401
	Extension of store building in Town Hall yard
	                     -   
	        4,000,000 
	                       -   
	                     -   

	31112001
	Construction of additional floor for office block 
	                     -   
	        8,000,000 
	                       -   
	                     -   

	32
	Acquisition of Financial Assets
	                    -   
	                    -   
	                      -   
	                    -   

	 
	Loans
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Total
	  105,505,783 
	  122,464,588 
	   112,717,450 
	  115,150,740 

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Programme MCQB 2: Provision and maintenance of community-based infrastructure and amenities

	Item No.
	Details
	 2011            Revised Estimates                                Rs 
	 2012   Estimates                                  Rs 
	 2013         Planned                     Rs 
	 2014        Planned                     Rs 

	21
	Compensation of employees
	   39,924,328 
	   38,333,948 
	     38,727,240 
	   39,337,924 

	21110
	Personal Emoluments
	    36,114,744 
	    34,390,672 
	     34,731,140 
	    35,310,024 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	21110001
	Basic Salary
	      33,428,000 
	      31,233,000 
	        31,433,400 
	      31,866,600 

	21110002
	Salary Compensation
	                    -   
	                    -   
	                      -   
	                    -   

	21110003
	Extra Remuneration
	        1,409,544 
	        1,770,072 
	          1,778,700 
	        1,790,800 

	21110004
	Allowances
	        1,277,200 
	        1,387,600 
	          1,519,040 
	        1,652,624 

	21111
	Other staff costs 
	        3,809,584 
	        3,943,276 
	          3,996,100 
	        4,027,900 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	21111002
	Travelling and Transport
	        3,274,584 
	        3,729,276 
	          3,744,100 
	        3,758,400 

	21111100
	Overtime
	           535,000 
	           214,000 
	             252,000 
	           269,500 

	22
	Goods & services
	    35,468,000 
	    32,155,000 
	      33,850,000 
	    34,883,500 

	22010
	Cost of Utilities
	      16,668,000 
	      16,668,000 
	        17,218,000 
	      17,403,500 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22010001
	Electricity and Gas Charges
	      16,500,000 
	      16,500,000 
	        17,050,000 
	      17,225,000 

	22010002
	Telephone
	             28,000 
	             28,000 
	               28,000 
	             28,500 

	22010003
	Water Charges
	           140,000 
	           140,000 
	             140,000 
	           150,000 

	22020
	Fuel and Oil
	        5,825,000 
	        4,316,000 
	          4,906,000 
	        5,073,000 

	 
	 
	           470,000 
	           320,000 
	             310,000 
	           315,000 

	22040
	Office Equipment and Furniture
	           100,000 
	           100,000 
	             110,000 
	           115,000 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22040001
	Office Equipment 
	             45,000 
	             40,000 
	               45,000 
	             45,000 

	22040002
	Office Furniture
	             55,000 
	             60,000 
	               65,000 
	             70,000 

	22050
	Office Expenses
	           135,000 
	           115,000 
	             125,000 
	           125,000 

	22060
	Maintenance
	        8,865,000 
	        8,031,000 
	          8,426,000 
	        8,992,000 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22060001
	Maintenance- Building
	           450,000 
	           450,000 
	             500,000 
	           550,000 

	22060002
	Maintenance- Other Structures
	           100,000 
	             50,000 
	               50,000 
	             55,000 

	22060003
	Maintenance - Plant & Equipment
	           295,000 
	           152,000 
	             176,000 
	           195,000 

	22060004
	Maintenance- Vehicles & Motorcycles
	        2,800,000 
	        2,014,000 
	          2,150,000 
	        2,320,000 

	22060010
	Maintenance of Grounds
	           900,000 
	           950,000 
	             975,000 
	        1,000,000 

	22060013
	Materials
	        3,650,000 
	        3,865,000 
	          3,990,000 
	        4,240,000 

	22060014
	Small Plants & Tools
	           320,000 
	           300,000 
	             335,000 
	           367,000 

	22060018
	Name plates and signs
	           350,000 
	           250,000 
	             250,000 
	           265,000 

	22100
	Publications & Stationeries
	           145,000 
	           115,000 
	             115,000 
	           115,000 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22100003
	Printing & Stationery
	           145,000 
	           115,000 
	             115,000 
	           115,000 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22900
	Other Goods & Services
	        3,730,000 
	        2,810,000 
	          2,950,000 
	        3,060,000 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22900038
	Insurance
	           950,000 
	        1,200,000 
	          1,250,000 
	        1,300,000 

	22900039
	Hired & Contracted Services
	        2,675,000 
	        1,505,000 
	          1,595,000 
	        1,655,000 

	22900099
	Miscellaneous  Expenses 
	           105,000 
	           105,000 
	             105,000 
	           105,000 

	31
	Acquisition of Non-Financial Assets
	         130,000 
	      5,000,000 
	           500,000 
	         500,000 

	31112001
	Municipal Garage at Palma
	                     -   
	        3,000,000 
	                       -   
	                     -   

	31113036
	Minor capital projects
	                     -   
	           500,000 
	             500,000 
	           500,000 

	3112
	Other machinery & equipment 
	           130,000 
	                     -   
	                       -   
	                     -   

	3112299
	Mobile Elevator
	                     -   
	        1,500,000 
	                       -   
	                     -   

	32
	Acquisition of Financial Assets
	                    -   
	                    -   
	                      -   
	                    -   

	 
	Loans
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Total
	    75,522,328 
	    75,488,948 
	     73,077,240 
	   74,721,424 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Programme MCQB 3: Development Control within Council's Area

	Item No.
	Details
	 2011            Revised Estimates                                Rs 
	 2012   Estimates                                  Rs 
	 2013         Planned                     Rs 
	 2014        Planned                     Rs 

	21
	Compensation of employees
	      4,236,048 
	      4,410,564 
	        4,482,500 
	      4,643,605 

	21110
	Personal Emoluments
	      3,500,448 
	      3,794,124 
	        3,863,000 
	      4,020,205 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	21110001
	Basic Salary
	      3,307,800 
	      3,587,400 
	        3,650,000 
	      3,800,000 

	21110002
	Salary Compensation
	                    -   
	                    -   
	                      -   
	                    -   

	21110003
	Extra Remuneration
	           87,648 
	         106,224 
	           106,500 
	         107,000 

	21110004
	Allowances
	         105,000 
	         100,500 
	           106,500 
	         113,205 

	21111
	Other staff costs 
	           735,600 
	           616,440 
	             619,500 
	           623,400 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	21111002
	Travelling and Transport
	           735,600 
	           601,440 
	             604,500 
	           608,400 

	21111100
	Overtime
	                     -   
	             15,000 
	               15,000 
	             15,000 

	22
	Goods & services
	         327,000 
	         367,000 
	           407,000 
	         407,000 

	22010
	Cost of Utilities
	               2,000 
	               2,000 
	                 2,000 
	               2,000 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22010001
	Electricity and Gas Charges
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22010002
	Telephone
	               2,000 
	               2,000 
	                 2,000 
	               2,000 

	22040
	Office Equipment and Furniture
	             80,000 
	             80,000 
	             110,000 
	           110,000 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22040001
	Office Equipment 
	             50,000 
	             40,000 
	               50,000 
	             50,000 

	22040002
	Office Furniture
	             30,000 
	             40,000 
	               60,000 
	             60,000 

	22050
	Office Expenses
	             15,000 
	             15,000 
	               15,000 
	             15,000 

	22100
	Publications & Stationeries
	           165,000 
	           205,000 
	             205,000 
	           205,000 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22100003
	Printing & Stationery
	           165,000 
	           205,000 
	             205,000 
	           205,000 

	Item No.
	Details
	 2011            Revised Estimates                                Rs 
	 2012   Estimates                                  Rs 
	 2013         Planned                     Rs 
	 2014        Planned                     Rs 

	22900
	Other Goods & Services
	             65,000 
	             65,000 
	               75,000 
	             75,000 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22900039
	Hired & Contracted Services
	             50,000 
	             50,000 
	               60,000 
	             60,000 

	22900099
	Miscellaneous  Expenses 
	             15,000 
	             15,000 
	               15,000 
	             15,000 

	31
	Acquisition of Non-Financial Assets
	                    -   
	                    -   
	                      -   
	                    -   

	 
	Other machinery & equipment 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	32
	Acquisition of Financial Assets
	                    -   
	                    -   
	                      -   
	                    -   

	 
	Loans
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Total
	      4,563,048 
	      4,777,564 
	        4,889,500 
	       5,050,605 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Programme MCQB 4: Sound and Healthy conditions in the Council's area

	Item No.
	Details
	 2011            Revised Estimates                                Rs 
	 2012   Estimates                                  Rs 
	 2013         Planned                     Rs 
	 2014        Planned                     Rs 

	21
	Compensation of employees
	    57,644,802 
	    61,783,077 
	      64,000,105 
	    65,403,485 

	21110
	Personal Emoluments
	   47,344,018 
	    50,096,173 
	      51,929,105 
	    53,133,785 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	21110001
	Basic Salary
	      43,462,600 
	      45,235,800 
	        46,944,200 
	      48,006,600 

	21110002
	Salary Compensation
	 
	 
	 
	 

	21110003
	Extra Remuneration
	        2,307,168 
	        3,109,948 
	          3,156,600 
	        3,225,000 

	21110004
	Allowances
	        1,574,250 
	        1,750,425 
	          1,828,305 
	        1,902,185 

	21111
	Other staff costs 
	      10,300,784 
	      11,686,904 
	        12,071,000 
	      12,269,700 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	21111002
	Travelling and Transport
	        3,940,784 
	        5,616,904 
	          5,706,000 
	        5,760,700 

	21111100
	Overtime
	        6,360,000 
	        6,070,000 
	          6,365,000 
	        6,509,000 

	22
	Goods & services
	    11,451,500 
	    18,818,500 
	        9,307,700 
	      9,878,000 

	22010
	Cost of Utilities
	           542,000 
	           638,000 
	             699,000 
	           748,000 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22010001
	Electricity and Gas Charges
	           300,000 
	           358,000 
	             387,000 
	           412,000 

	22010002
	Telephone
	             27,000 
	             27,000 
	               43,000 
	             51,000 

	22010003
	Water Charges
	           215,000 
	           253,000 
	             269,000 
	           285,000 

	22020
	Fuel and Oil
	        1,280,000 
	        1,280,000 
	          1,435,000 
	        1,485,000 

	22030
	Rent
	           575,000 
	           575,000 
	             575,000 
	           600,000 

	22040
	Office Equipment and Furniture
	           114,000 
	             89,000 
	             105,000 
	           126,000 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22040001
	Office Equipment 
	             44,000 
	             39,000 
	               54,500 
	             65,000 

	22040002
	Office Furniture
	             70,000 
	             50,000 
	               50,500 
	             61,000 

	22050
	Office Expenses
	             75,000 
	           105,000 
	             122,700 
	           138,500 

	22060
	Maintenance
	        1,605,000 
	        1,731,000 
	          1,920,500 
	        2,093,000 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22060001
	Maintenance- Building
	           620,000 
	           655,000 
	             735,000 
	           805,000 

	22060012
	Materials-Disinfectants
	             50,000 
	             50,000 
	               55,000 
	             60,000 

	22060013
	Materials
	           170,000 
	           176,000 
	             192,500 
	           209,000 

	22060014
	Small Plants & Tools
	           465,000 
	           515,000 
	             591,500 
	           662,000 

	22060015
	Maintenance Cemeteries & Cremation Ground
	           300,000 
	           335,000 
	             346,500 
	           357,000 

	22070
	Cleaning Services
	           105,000 
	        8,150,000 
	             150,000 
	           150,000 

	22100
	Publications & Stationeries
	           155,000 
	           125,000 
	             140,000 
	           150,000 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22100003
	Printing & Stationery
	           155,000 
	           125,000 
	             140,000 
	           150,000 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22900
	Other Goods & Services
	        7,000,500 
	        6,125,500 
	          4,160,500 
	        4,387,500 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22900037
	Environmental Activities
	           600,000 
	           750,000 
	             800,000 
	           850,000 

	22900039
	Hired & Contracted Services
	        6,350,000 
	        5,320,000 
	          3,295,000 
	        3,462,000 

	22900099
	Miscellaneous  Expenses 
	             50,500 
	             55,500 
	               65,500 
	             75,500 

	31
	Acquisition of Non-Financial Assets
	                    -   
	   24,000,000 
	                      -   
	                    -   

	31113022
	Cemetery trois Mammelles 
	                     -   
	      21,500,000 
	                       -   
	                     -   

	31113028
	Mini market at Palma
	                     -   
	        2,500,000 
	                       -   
	                     -   

	32
	Acquisition of Financial Assets
	                    -   
	                    -   
	                      -   
	                    -   

	 
	Loans
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Total
	    69,096,302 
	  104,601,577 
	      73,307,805 
	    75,281,485 

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Programme MCQB 5: Promotion of Sports, Welfare, Education and cultural development

	Item No.
	Details
	 2011            Revised Estimates                                Rs 
	 2012   Estimates                                  Rs 
	 2013         Planned                     Rs 
	 2014        Planned                     Rs 

	21
	Compensation of employees
	    23,463,140 
	    22,116,350 
	      22,609,830 
	    23,080,665 

	21110
	Personal Emoluments
	      17,417,590 
	      16,982,126 
	        17,335,630 
	      17,710,165 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	21110001
	Basic Salary
	      16,272,000 
	      15,633,600 
	        15,925,200 
	      16,236,000 

	21110002
	Salary Compensation
	                    -   
	                    -   
	                      -   
	                    -   

	21110003
	Extra Remuneration
	           653,580 
	           852,516 
	             872,600 
	           889,700 

	21110004
	Allowances
	           492,010 
	           496,010 
	             537,830 
	           584,465 

	21111
	Other staff costs 
	        6,045,550 
	        5,134,224 
	          5,274,200 
	        5,370,500 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	21111002
	Travelling and Transport
	        1,712,300 
	        1,927,224 
	          1,959,200 
	        1,989,500 

	21111100
	Overtime
	        4,333,250 
	        3,207,000 
	          3,315,000 
	        3,381,000 

	22
	Goods & services
	    19,061,700 
	    16,716,900 
	      17,638,100 
	   18,411,100 

	22010
	Cost of Utilities
	        2,789,900 
	        3,134,200 
	          3,297,100 
	        3,438,200 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22010001
	Electricity and Gas Charges
	        1,770,000 
	        2,015,500 
	          2,077,500 
	        2,136,500 

	22010002
	Telephone
	           429,500 
	           358,500 
	             398,600 
	           422,700 

	22010003
	Water Charges
	           408,400 
	           494,200 
	             536,000 
	           574,000 

	22010004
	Waste Water Charges
	           182,000 
	           266,000 
	             285,000 
	           305,000 

	22020
	Fuel and Oil
	           276,000 
	           283,000 
	             302,000 
	           320,000 

	22040
	Office Equipment and Furniture
	        1,131,000 
	        1,331,700 
	          1,509,000 
	        1,605,300 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22040001
	Office Equipment 
	           774,500 
	           841,500 
	             976,000 
	        1,026,000 

	22040002
	Office Furniture
	           356,500 
	           490,200 
	             533,000 
	           579,300 

	22050
	Office Expenses
	           409,800 
	           420,800 
	             458,600 
	           492,500 

	22060
	Maintenance
	        1,839,500 
	        1,789,000 
	          1,943,400 
	        2,042,400 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22060001
	Maintenance- Building
	           745,000 
	           655,000 
	             705,000 
	           743,000 

	22060003
	Maintenance - Plant & Equipment / Repairs & Maintenance Equipment
	               5,000 
	               5,000 
	                 6,000 
	               7,000 

	22060004
	Maintenance- Vehicles & Motorcycles
	           100,000 
	           100,000 
	             110,000 
	           115,000 

	22060005
	Maintenance- IT Equipment
	             18,500 
	             19,500 
	               20,500 
	             21,500 

	22060010
	Maintenance of Grounds
	           455,000 
	           505,000 
	             537,000 
	           563,000 

	22060013
	Materials
	           512,000 
	           500,500 
	             559,900 
	           586,900 

	22060014
	Small Plants & Tools
	               4,000 
	               4,000 
	                 5,000 
	               6,000 

	22100
	Publications & Stationeries
	        2,006,100 
	        1,824,800 
	          1,983,500 
	        2,137,700 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22100003
	Printing & Stationery
	           291,100 
	           286,800 
	             305,500 
	           354,700 

	22100004
	Books & Periodicals
	        1,715,000 
	        1,538,000 
	          1,678,000 
	        1,783,000 

	22120
	Fees
	           850,000 
	           940,000 
	             950,000 
	           960,000 

	22900
	Other Goods & Services
	        9,759,400 
	        6,993,400 
	          7,194,500 
	        7,415,000 

	 
	of which:
	 
	 
	 
	 

	22900031
	Entertainment
	             45,300 
	             45,400 
	               49,500 
	             54,000 

	22900033
	Cultural Activities
	        1,180,000 
	           975,000 
	             975,000 
	        1,000,000 

	22900034
	Educational Activities
	           425,000 
	           190,000 
	             195,000 
	           202,000 

	22900035
	Social Activities
	        1,420,000 
	        1,140,000 
	          1,207,000 
	        1,239,000 

	22900036
	Sports Activities
	        2,630,000 
	        2,071,000 
	          2,076,000 
	        2,091,000 

	22900039
	Hired & Contracted Services
	        3,816,600 
	        2,397,500 
	          2,506,000 
	        2,630,500 

	22900099
	Miscellaneous  Expenses 
	           242,500 
	           174,500 
	             186,000 
	           198,500 

	26
	Grants
	      2,022,000 
	      1,515,000 
	        1,515,000 
	      1,515,000 

	26312012
	Grant to Associations
	        2,022,000 
	        1,515,000 
	          1,515,000 
	        1,515,000 

	27
	Social Benefits
	         100,000 
	           75,000 
	           100,000 
	         100,000 

	27210
	Social Assistance Benefits in Kind
	 
	 
	 
	 

	27210002
	Social Aid
	           100,000 
	             75,000 
	             100,000 
	           100,000 

	28
	Other Expense
	              4,356 
	              4,356 
	                5,000 
	              5,500 

	28300
	Miscellaneous Other Expenditure
	               4,356 
	               4,356 
	                 5,000 
	               5,500 

	28300002
	LA Contribution to Fire Services
	               4,356 
	               4,356 
	                 5,000 
	               5,500 

	31
	Acquisition of Non-Financial Assets
	                    -   
	 100,000,000 
	                      -   
	                    -   

	31112423
	Swimming Pool at Ebène
	                     -   
	    100,000,000 
	                       -   
	                     -   

	32
	Acquisition of Financial Assets
	                    -   
	                    -   
	                      -   
	                    -   

	 
	Loans
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Total
	    44,651,196 
	  140,427,606 
	      41,867,930 
	    43,112,265 

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	SUMMARY OF REVENUE

	Item No.
	Details
	 2011            Estimates                                Rs 
	 2012              Estimates                       Rs 
	 2013         Planned                     Rs 
	 2014        Planned                     Rs 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	11
	TAXES
	 
	 
	 
	 

	113
	Taxes on Property
	      71,625,000 
	      28,700,000 
	        29,500,000 
	      31,000,000 

	11310003
	General Rates
	      25,000,000 
	      28,700,000 
	        29,500,000 
	      31,000,000 

	11310004
	Tenant's tax
	      46,625,000 
	                     -   
	                       -   
	                     -   

	114
	Taxes on Goods and Services
	      21,475,000 
	      21,250,000 
	        22,000,000 
	      22,500,000 

	11450008
	Occasional Trade Fee
	                     -   
	                     -   
	                       -   
	                     -   

	11450009
	Trade Fees
	      21,475,000 
	      21,250,000 
	        22,000,000 
	      22,500,000 

	 
	TOTAL - TAXES
	   93,100,000 
	   49,950,000 
	     51,500,000 
	   53,500,000 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	13
	GRANTS
	 
	 
	 
	 

	13310001
	Grants-in-Aid
	    153,445,000 
	    206,621,000 
	      166,621,000 
	    166,621,000 

	13310001
	Capital Grants
	                     -   
	    121,500,000 
	                       -   
	                     -   

	 
	TOTAL - GRANTS
	 153,445,000 
	 328,121,000 
	   166,621,000 
	 166,621,000 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	14
	OTHER REVENUE
	 
	 
	 
	 

	1411
	Interest
	    11,500,000 
	   10,000,000 
	     10,300,000 
	    10,500,000 

	14110060
	Investment Income
	      11,500,000 
	      10,000,000 
	        10,300,000 
	      10,500,000 

	 
	 
	    11,500,000 
	   10,000,000 
	     10,300,000 
	    10,500,000 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	1415
	Rent and Royalties
	 
	 
	 
	 

	14150006
	Rental of Land and Buildings
	        6,227,524 
	        6,057,300 
	          6,528,740 
	        6,961,992 

	1415000601
	Sports Complexes, Swimming Pool & Playgrounds
	           623,000 
	           521,000 
	             549,000 
	           578,000 

	1415000602
	Salle Des fetes & Reception Halls
	        1,763,000 
	        1,050,000 
	          1,185,000 
	        1,255,000 

	1415000603
	Theatre/Museum/Gallery etc
	             60,000 
	             50,000 
	               55,000 
	             60,000 

	Item No.
	Details
	 2011            Estimates                                Rs 
	 2012              Estimates                       Rs 
	 2013         Planned                     Rs 
	 2014        Planned                     Rs 

	1415000604
	Housing Estates
	        1,800,000 
	        2,358,500 
	          2,576,300 
	        2,815,880 

	1415000605
	Social Halls & Multipurpose Complex
	           150,000 
	           150,000 
	             155,000 
	           160,000 

	1415000606
	Commercial Buildings
	        1,831,524 
	        1,927,800 
	          2,008,440 
	        2,093,112 

	14150007
	Rentals -Market and Fairs
	             43,200 
	             43,200 
	               43,200 
	             43,200 

	14150008
	Rentals -Advertising Panels
	           197,950 
	           198,000 
	             198,000 
	           198,000 

	14150010
	Rentals - Loan Stores, Bus, etc
	           140,000 
	           168,000 
	             180,000 
	           192,000 

	 
	 
	      6,608,674 
	       6,466,500 
	        6,949,940 
	      7,395,192 

	142
	Sale of Goods of Services
	 
	 
	 
	 

	14220063
	Entrance Fees
	      10,784,790 
	        9,696,140 
	          9,730,000 
	        9,730,000 

	14220065
	Advertising Fees
	        1,200,000 
	                     -   
	                       -   
	                     -   

	14220066
	Fees - Right of occupation
	        5,687,693 
	        5,756,643 
	          5,768,000 
	        5,768,000 

	14220067
	Fees Funeral
	           250,000 
	           890,000 
	             890,000 
	           915,000 

	1422006701
	Cremation/Inceneration
	           250,000 
	           890,000 
	             890,000 
	           915,000 

	14220068
	Library Fees
	           666,500 
	           763,000 
	             808,900 
	           849,800 

	1422006801
	Subscription
	           342,000 
	           377,500 
	             394,000 
	           405,500 

	1422006802
	Photocopies
	             17,000 
	             24,000 
	               28,000 
	             32,000 

	1422006803
	Internet Access
	           205,000 
	           250,000 
	             267,000 
	           284,000 

	1422006804
	Fines
	             94,500 
	           101,500 
	             108,200 
	           114,900 

	1422006805
	Loss of Books
	               8,000 
	             10,000 
	               11,700 
	             13,400 

	14220071
	Bus Toll
	           756,000 
	           756,000 
	             756,000 
	           756,000 

	14220072
	Scavenging fee
	           208,000 
	        2,800,000 
	          2,800,000 
	        2,800,000 

	1422007201
	Trade Refuse
	           208,000 
	           500,000 
	             500,000 
	           500,000 

	1422007202
	Ad-hoc refuse collection
	                     -   
	        2,300,000 
	          2,300,000 
	        2,300,000 

	14220216
	Permits
	      14,260,000 
	        5,200,000 
	          5,700,000 
	        5,750,000 

	1422021601
	BLP Fees
	      13,900,000 
	        5,000,000 
	          5,500,000 
	        5,500,000 

	1422021602
	Processing fee for BLP
	           360,000 
	           200,000 
	             200,000 
	           250,000 

	Item No.
	Details
	 2011            Estimates                                Rs 
	 2012              Estimates                       Rs 
	 2013         Planned                     Rs 
	 2014        Planned                     Rs 

	1422021604
	Excavation fees
	                     -   
	                     -   
	                       -   
	                     -   

	 
	 
	   33,812,983 
	    25,861,783 
	      26,452,900 
	    26,568,800 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	14299
	Miscellaneous Revenue
	 
	 
	 
	 

	14599999
	Other Miscellaneous incl. Unidentified                            Revenues
	           507,000 
	      27,361,000 
	             361,000 
	           361,000 

	 
	
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Deficit
	                    -   
	                    -   
	     43,675,085 
	   48,370,527 

	Total
	  298,973,657 
	 447,760,283 
	    305,859,925 
	  313,316,519 
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	BALANCE SHEET
	
	 
	

	as at 31 December 2012
	 
	 
	
	 
	

	
	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	

	2011
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Note
	 2012 

	Rs 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 Rs 
	 
	 Rs 

	 
	 
	FIXED ASSETS
	 
	 
	
	 
	 
	 

	 376,022,936 
	 
	Capital outlay
	
	2.01
	387,681,579 
	 
	 

	 185,225,893 
	 
	Other Long Term Outlay
	2.02
	  204,464,284 
	 
	 

	561,248,829 
	 
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	  592,145,863 

	 
	 
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	CURRENT ASSETS
	 
	 
	
	 
	 
	 

	4,338,687
	 
	Stocks
	
	
	1.02
	 3,868,713 
	 
	 

	66,417,897 
	 
	Debtors
	
	
	3.00
	69,205,911 
	 
	 

	22,342 
	 
	Advances
	
	
	
	 144,995 
	 
	 

	232,597,700 
	 
	Investments
	
	
	 329,329,901 
	 
	 

	64,458,716 
	 
	Cash & Bank Balances
	
	4,387,742 
	 
	 

	     367,835,342 
	 
	
	
	
	
	406,937,262 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
	 
	 
	
	 
	 
	 

	 22,145,962 
	 
	Creditors 
	
	
	
	11,601,577 
	 
	 

	8,639,091 
	 
	Income received in advance
	
	6,462,067 
	 
	 

	7,178,788 
	 
	Sundry Creditors
	
	
	   904,325 
	 
	 

	  5,238,325 
	 
	Deposits
	
	
	
	5,688,219 
	 
	 

	43,202,166 
	 
	
	
	
	
	24,656,188 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	 324,633,176 
	 
	NET CURRENT ASSETS
	
	
	
	 
	 
	382,281,074 

	 
	 
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	885,882,005 
	 
	TOTAL ASSETS
	 
	 
	
	 
	 
	974,426,937 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	FINANCED BY
	 
	 
	
	 
	 
	 

	         762,691,462 
	 
	General Fund
	
	
	 
	 
	         809,160,547 

	 
	 
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	PROVISIONS
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	              4,140,756 
	 
	Passage Fund
	
	 
	             4,140,756 
	 
	 

	74,687,828 
	 
	Pension Fund
	
	6
	99,796,477 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	OTHER BALANCES
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	44,361,959 
	 
	Other Balances
	
	
	61,329,157 
	 
	165,266,390 

	 
	 
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	885,882,005 
	 
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	       974,426,937 

	
	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	

	
	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	

	
	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	

	
	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	

	 MRS. R. DAYAMANTEE MEETOO 
	
	
	
	 R. MANNA 

	 MAYOR 
	
	
	
	            AG. CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

	
	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	

	INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
	
	

	 For the year ending 31 December 2012 
	
	

	 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	2011
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Note
	 2012 

	Rs 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 Rs 
	 
	 Rs 

	 
	INCOME
	 
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	   156,721,150 
	Government Grant-In-Aid
	
	
	     212,893,460 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	      26,023,265 
	General Rates
	
	
	
	       29,991,509 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	      13,281,882 
	Investment Income
	
	
	1.05
	       15,159,621 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	      20,063,586 
	Rentals
	
	
	
	
	       20,897,431 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	      23,328,750 
	Trade Fees
	
	
	1.04
	       22,710,500 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	      62,996,748 
	Taxes
	
	
	
	
	                         -   
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	        6,532,176 
	Building and Land Use Permits
	
	
	          4,511,508 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	        7,327,236 
	Other Income
	
	
	
	          7,454,954 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	   316,274,793 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	   313,618,983 

	 
	EXPENDITURE
	 
	 
	 
	
	 
	 
	 

	   169,784,387 
	Staff Costs
	
	
	4
	     174,277,713 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	      45,463,809 
	Supplies & Services
	
	
	
	       48,664,999 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	        6,260,118 
	Transport costs
	
	
	
	5,931,628 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	        6,362,938 
	Other Administration Costs
	
	5
	          6,441,161 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	        4,219,091 
	Social and Cultural Activities Expenses
	
	          2,745,908 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	        1,557,349 
	Grants and Subsidies
	
	
	
	          1,345,761 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	      36,956,146 
	Contribution to Funds/Provisions
	
	1.06
	       21,362,625 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	      20,224,798 
	Pensions and Gratuities
	
	
	       23,152,057 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	   290,828,636 
	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	283,921,852 

	     25,446,157 
	Surplus For The Year
	
	 
	 
	29,697,131 


	CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

	 
	 
	
	
	 
	

	 For the year ending 31 December 2012 

	2011
	 
	 
	 2012 

	Rs 
	 
	 
	 Rs 
	 
	 Rs 

	 
	
	OPERATING ACTIVITIES
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	 
	 
	 

	    155,685,952 
	
	Cash received from Grants-In-Aid
	       212,893,460 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	       89,775,828 
	
	Cash received from rates and taxes
	         44,922,055 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	       30,494,421 
	
	Cash received from Fees-8th & 11th Schedules
	         23,447,925 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	       22,495,586 
	
	Cash received from other sources
	         22,941,208 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	    298,451,787 
	
	
	       304,204,648 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	     (98,247,997)
	
	Cash payments to Suppliers/Contractors
	     (102,605,688)
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	   (169,252,519)
	
	Cash paid to and on behalf of employees
	     (171,860,623)
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	       30,951,271 
	
	Net cash Inflow from Operating Activities
	 
	 
	      29,738,337 

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	RETURNS ON INVESTMENT AND SERVICING OF FINANCE
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	 
	 
	 

	         7,456,204 
	
	Interest received on Investment
	         13,563,386 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	                        -   
	
	Interest paid on Loan
	                           -   
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	         7,456,204 
	
	Net Cash Inflow from R.O.I and S.O.F
	 
	 
	      13,563,386 

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	INVESTING ACTIVITIES
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	 
	 
	 

	   (107,000,000)
	
	Investments
	        (73,009,102)
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	     (38,330,879)
	
	Payments to increase Capital Outlay
	        (31,228,785)
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	       (4,278,717)
	
	Payments to increase Long Term Outlay
	        (19,742,935)
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	                    800 
	
	Receipt from sale of fixed assets
	               528,181 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	   (149,608,796)
	
	Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities
	 
	 
	  (123,452,640)

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	FINANCING ACTIVITIES
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	 
	 
	 

	       19,562,728 
	
	Government Grants Received
	         20,079,943 
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	                        -   
	
	Redemption of Loans
	                           -   
	 
	 

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	       19,562,728 
	
	Net Cash Inflow from Financing Activities
	 
	 
	      20,079,943 

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 

	     (91,638,594)
	
	Net Decrease in Cash and Cash equivalents
	 
	 
	    (60,070,975)

	    156,097,310 
	
	Cash & Cash Equivalents as at 01 January
	 
	 
	      64,458,716 

	      64,458,716 
	
	Cash & Cash Equivalents as at 31 December
	 
	 
	       4,387,742 


	 
	NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	  1.00 
	ACCOUNTING POLICIES
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	  1.01 
	The Accounts have been prepared on a historical cost basis.
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	  1.02 
	Stock has been valued on weighted average cost basis. 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	  1.03 
	No Depreciation is charged in the Accounts. 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	  1.04 
	All income and expenditure have been dealt with on the accrual basis.
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	  1.05 
	Interest on investments have been accounted for on the accrual basis and credited to the Income and Expenditure Account.

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	  1.06 
	Amount of Rs21.4m for Contribution to Funds/Provisions includes the followings:-
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(a) Provision for Pension liability  prior to PRB 2008.
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Our Pension Fund has been transferred in January 2013 to the Sicom Ltd in line with Local Government Act 2011. In view of 

	 
	the actual Pension Liability which has been determined by Sicom, a provision of Rs16m has been made in the accounts as no 

	 
	 funds was provided for pension liability prior to 2008
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	  1.07 
	Pending Litigation- "Mise en Demeure" has been served by the following Companies on the Council:-
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(a) Ramloll Bhooshan for non payment of Rs412,000 together with interest and Costs as regards to Contract for the Design 

	 
	      and Construction of a Multipurpose Gymnasium Complex at Ebene 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(b) Mechanisation Company Ltd for non payment of Rs429,614.40 together with interest and Costs as regards to Contract 

	 
	      for supply of two tractors and three trailers 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	      As at balance Sheet date the above cases were not yet resolved.
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	      
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	  2.00 
	FIXED ASSETS 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	CAPITAL OUTLAY
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 Balance                            '@                                         31 December 2011                          Rs.
	 
	       Additions/                 Acquisitions                                 Rs.
	 
	                Disposals /                 Written off                         Rs.         
	 
	  Balance                            '@                                         31 December 2012                    Rs. 

	  2.01 
	Capital Outlay Schedule
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Land & Buildings
	           216,503,908 
	 
	           10,776,323 
	 
	                      -   
	 
	                   227,280,231 

	 
	 
	                            -   
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                                   -   

	 
	Vehicles
	             58,081,629 
	 
	             7,174,865 
	 
	          3,088,099 
	 
	                     62,168,395 

	 
	 
	                            -   
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                                   -   

	 
	Office Equipment, Furniture & Fittings
	               9,872,098 
	 
	                968,515 
	 
	             913,673 
	 
	                       9,926,940 

	 
	 
	                            -   
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                                   -   

	 
	Computers
	             19,803,569 
	 
	                133,146 
	 
	          1,172,125 
	 
	                     18,764,590 

	 
	 
	                            -   
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                                   -   

	 
	Plant & Equipments
	             24,691,621 
	 
	                  95,829 
	 
	          3,435,850 
	 
	                     21,351,600 

	 
	 
	                            -   
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                                   -   

	 
	Donated Assets
	             16,261,000 
	 
	                         -   
	 
	                      -   
	 
	                     16,261,000 

	 
	 
	                            -   
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                                   -   

	 
	Others
	             30,809,111 
	 
	             1,194,680 
	 
	               74,969 
	 
	                     31,928,823 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	           376,022,936 
	 
	          20,343,358 
	 
	         8,684,715 
	 
	                  387,681,579 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	  2.02 
	Other Long Term Outlay Schedule
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Roads
	           111,594,902 
	 
	             7,761,441 
	 
	                      -   
	 
	                   119,356,343 

	 
	 
	                            -   
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                                   -   

	 
	Drains & Bridges
	             39,963,040 
	 
	           10,878,232 
	 
	                      -   
	 
	                     50,841,272 

	 
	 
	                            -   
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                                   -   

	 
	Street Lighting 
	               8,471,151 
	 
	                598,717 
	 
	                      -   
	 
	                       9,069,868 

	 
	 
	                            -   
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                                   -   

	 
	Donated Assets
	             24,620,367 
	 
	                         -   
	 
	                      -   
	 
	                     24,620,367 

	 
	 
	                            -   
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                                   -   

	 
	Others
	                  576,433 
	 
	                         -   
	 
	                      -   
	 
	                          576,433 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	           185,225,893 
	 
	          19,238,390 
	 
	                      -   
	 
	                  204,464,284 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	  3.00 
	DEBTORS 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	Gross
	 
	Provision
	 
	 Net Amount 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	Rs
	 
	Rs
	 
	 Rs 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	General Rates
	 
	 
	           28,997,445 
	 
	          7,628,833 
	 
	                     21,368,612 

	 
	Tenants Tax
	 
	 
	           15,733,838 
	 
	          9,686,961 
	 
	                       6,046,877 

	 
	Car Loan
	 
	 
	             1,682,307 
	 
	                      -   
	 
	                       1,682,307 

	 
	Market & Fairs
	 
	 
	           11,605,480 
	 
	             600,000 
	 
	                     11,005,480 

	 
	Trade Fees
	 
	 
	           12,180,212 
	 
	          2,961,650 
	 
	                       9,218,562 

	 
	Scavenging Fees
	 
	 
	             1,288,063 
	 
	                      -   
	 
	                       1,288,063 

	 
	Advertisement
	 
	 
	                  21,300 
	 
	                      -   
	 
	                            21,300 

	 
	Rent
	 
	 
	                862,784 
	 
	             263,855 
	 
	                          598,929 

	 
	Interest Accrued
	 
	 
	           11,182,278 
	 
	                      -   
	 
	                     11,182,278 

	 
	Others
	 
	 
	             6,793,503 
	 
	                      -   
	 
	                       6,793,503 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	          90,347,210 
	 
	       21,141,299 
	 
	                    69,205,911 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	The total amount of Rs15.7m for Tenants Tax includes an amount of Rs6.5m owed by Infinity BPO Ltd which might not be 

	 
	recovered in toto as the company is in liquidation. A provision for bad debts of Rs5 has been maintained in the Accounts 

	 
	in year 2012
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	4.00 
	STAFF COSTS
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 Rs 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Salaries & Wages
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                   115,333,944 

	 
	Bonus
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                       9,547,233 

	 
	Travelling
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                     11,116,350 

	 
	Overtime
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                       8,569,518 

	 
	Uniforms
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                       2,382,995 

	 
	Passages
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                       3,000,000 

	 
	Sick Leave
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                       4,200,000 

	 
	Others
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                     20,127,673 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                  174,277,713 

	5.00 
	OTHER ADMINISTRATION COST
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 Rs 

	 
	This includes:
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Insurances
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                          544,171 

	 
	Advertising
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                          234,707 

	 
	Overseas Missions
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                          374,077 

	 
	Legal/Court Fees
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                          868,596 

	 
	Postages
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                          511,495 

	 
	Allowance to Mayor & Councillors
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                       2,042,343 

	 
	Others
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                       1,865,771 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                      6,441,161 

	6.00 
	PENSION FUND-HELD AT SICOM PENSION FUND
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 Rs 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 Balance B/F
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                     74,687,828 

	 
	Contribution/Interest 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                     25,108,649 

	 
	Balance C/F
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	                    99,796,477 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 The total sum representing employer's contribution of 12% and employee's contribution of 6% is held at Sicom Pension Fund in line with the Local Government Act 2011.  
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	(ii)
	EVOLUTION OF DEBTORS THROUGHOUT THE LAST FIVE YEARS 

	 
	

	 
	 
	FINANCIAL YEAR

	 
	 
	2007/08                    Rs
	2008/09                   Rs
	6 mths ending 31st December 2009                   Rs
	 2010                 Rs
	2011               Rs
	2012                Rs

	 
	General Rates
	         12,437,943 
	            14,202,537 
	         14,274,165 
	         14,289,169 
	       29,256,267 
	       28,997,445 

	 
	Tenant Tax
	           7,841,445 
	            10,579,742 
	         12,589,435 
	         17,380,933 
	       19,167,272 
	       15,733,838 

	 
	Trade Fees
	           1,928,850 
	              2,428,300 
	           3,855,037 
	           5,324,737 
	         8,545,787 
	       12,180,212 

	 
	Market Fees
	           1,804,990 
	              3,071,557 
	           4,103,563 
	           6,220,098 
	         8,782,166 
	       11,605,480 

	 
	TOTAL
	        24,013,228 
	           30,282,136 
	        34,822,200 
	        43,214,937 
	       65,751,492 
	       68,516,975 

	 
	Provision for bad debts
	           4,038,647 
	              6,017,024 
	           6,017,024 
	           9,517,024 
	       18,078,674 
	       21,141,299 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	REVENUE COLLECTION TREND FOR THE LAST THREE YEARS
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	FINANCIAL YEAR
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 2010                 Rs
	2011                            Rs
	2012                Rs
	 
	 
	 

	 
	General Rates/Local Rate
	22,523,799 
	29,668,349.52 
	38,969,062.45 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Tenant Tax
	59,920,064 
	60,178,227.38 
	5,951,461.74 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Trade Fees
	18,685,070 
	21,222,875.00 
	17,482,717.93 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Market Fees
	12,436,591 
	10,836,680.50 
	 10,401,912.50 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Government Grants
	157,587,289 
	159,540,168.00 
	212,893,460.00 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Other Income
	25,820,813 
	18,332,691.65 
	 30,151,281.14 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	TOTAL
	      296,973,627 
	         299,778,992 
	      315,849,896 
	 
	 
	 


INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN YEAR 2012

	Department
	Areas to be audited
	Area achieved

	INCOME
	Daily cash taking
	(

	
	General Rates
	

	
	Admission Charge
	(

	
	Rent
	(

	
	Income from investment
	

	
	Advertisement & Publicity 
	

	
	Licences : Trade

               Taxi, Lorries

               Market Fee

               Building & Land Use Permits
	(
(

	
	Income from Internet, Photocopy, Subscription etc.
	(

	EXPENDITURE
	Current & Capital
	(

	
	Capital Expenditure
	(

	
	Payroll
	(

	
	Stores
	(

	
	Deposit & 

Advance
	(


	
	Purchases
	(

	
	Reallocation of Expenditure
	

	HRMO
	Leaves

Passages Benefit

Gratuity Pension Computation
	(
(
(

	WORKS:
	Garage (Transport)

Toolstore

Workshops

Sites
	(

	LIBRARY:
	Central Reading Points
	(

	WELFARE
	Site Visits, Surprise Check

Deposits 
	(

	REGISTRY
	Franking Machine
	(


No. of reports submitted: 102

Internal Audit memos sent to the Ag. Chief Executive

	Areas
	No. of memos

	Store
	3

	Special assignments
	4

	Prepaid Cards
	4

	Others
	27

	Building & Land use permits
	3

	Mileage
	3

	Finance Dept
	10

	Works
	16

	Travelling
	3

	Health
	9

	IT Section
	5

	H.Resources – leaves
	4

	Welfare
	9

	Overtime
	2

	Total
	102


	
	CAPITAL EXPENDITURE YEAR 2012
	

	1
	DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF MULTIPURPOSE COMPLEX AT EBENE
	25,000.00

	2
	CONSTRUCTION MULTIPURPOSE COMPLEX AT SODNAC
	74,174.50

	3
	UPGRADING OF MAIN LIBRARY
	13,900.00

	4
	CONS OF TOILET BLOCK FOR LIBRARY DEPARTMENT
	16,133.30

	5
	WATERPROOFING WORKS FOR ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDING TOWN HALL
	28,129.84

	6
	CONSTRUCTION OF STAIRCASE AT PALMA SOCIAL HALL
	58,024.87

	7
	CONSTRUCTION OF WALL AT FOOD COURT SIR WILLIAM NEWTON AVE
	91,501.83

	8
	CONSTRUCTION OF MULTIPURPOSE BUILDING THALL PREMISES
	2,632,480.00

	9
	SETTING UP OF MUNICIPAL GARAGE AT PALMA
	3,224,644.25

	10
	RENOVATION WORK AT TOWN HALL RECEPTION HALL
	393,819.18

	11
	CONSTRUCTION MULTIPURPOSE COMPLEX AT SODNAC
	1,386,616.73

	12
	PURCHASE CFL 40WTTS LANTERNS
	1,422,024.56

	13
	PURCHASE OF BRUSHCUTTERS(5)
	1,392,440.13

	14
	PURCHASE OF HEAVY DUTY EQUIPMENT FOR SMK SOONARANE GYMNASIUM
	359,556.01

	15
	PURCHASE OF HEAVY DUTY GYMNASIUM EQUIPMENT FOR FITNESS CENTRES-OLLIER 
	262,393.90

	16
	REPLACEMENT OF LOAN STORE ITEMS
	356,194.13

	17
	RENOVATION OF FISH BEEF AND OFAL SECTIONS AT QUATRE BORNES MARKET
	80,724.88

	18
	PURCHASE OF BINS
	7,107,980.00

	19
	PURCHASE OF ONE STREET LIGHTING LORRY
	4,087,915.00

	20
	PURCHASE OF MAYOR CAR
	2,846,250.00

	21
	PROVISION OF SPEED LIMITERS FOR MUNICIPAL VEHICLES
	240,700.00

	22
	EXTENSION OF STREET LIGHTING
	514,254.84

	23
	LIGHTING ALONG ACCESS TO SODNAC LEISURE PARK
	84,462.56

	24
	CONSTRUCTION OF DRAINS AT HOSENALLY LANE BELLE ROSE
	876,334.50

	25
	CONSTRUCTION AND COVERING DRAINS AT OOSMAN AND IBIS AVE
	5,629,893.14

	26
	CONSTRUCTION AND UPGRADING COVERING OF NELLAN DRAIN AND OTHERS
	2,950,008.76

	27
	COVERING OF CANAL AT JEEWOONARAIN AVE PALMA AND CONSTR CHILDREN PGRD AND PETANQUE COURT
	1,421,996.31

	28
	CONSTRUCTION OF ROADS AND LANES
	7,097,235.61

	29
	CONSTRUCTION OF LANES CONSTITUENCY NO 14
	664,205.83

	30
	PLANT,EQUIPMENT,FURNITURE AND COMPUTER
	1,197,490.94

	31
	OTHERS
	139,811.51

	
	TOTAL
	46,676,297.11
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT
TO THE COUNCIL OF
THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF QUATRE BORNES

Report on the Financial Statements

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Municipal Council of Quatre
Bornes, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2011, and the statement of income
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. [
conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions.
Those Standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my audit opinion.

14" Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel. : 212 2096-97/2110882  Fax : (230) 211 0880
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Passage Fund

The balance of the “Passage Fund” at 31 December 2011 was Rs 4,140,756. However, this
balance did not represent the value of Passage Benefits due to all eligible employees of the
Council as at that date. The liability of the Council in respect of Passage Benefits as at 31
December 2011 had not been determined.

During the previous years, the difference between the amount budgeted for Passage Benefits and
the actual expenditure for the year was credited to the “Passage Fund”. These amounts have been
cumulating to reach Rs 3,878,928 at 31 December 2010. In 2011, the same accounting treatment
was not applied, as only interest earned on the “Passage Fund” during the year and amounting to
Rs 261,828, was credited to the Fund.

A provision for Passage Benefits of Rs 3 million, accounted separately under “Other Balances”,
was also made in year 2010 to boost the Fund. During the year 2011, an additional provision of
Rs 1.5 million was made and Passage Benefits totalling Rs 2,271,210 were paid. An adjustment
of Rs 10,273 was also effected. At 31 December 2011, the balance of “Provision for Passage
Benefits” was Rs 2,239,063.

Had the actual amount due in respect of Passage Benefits been computed, “Staff Costs” and
“Passage Fund” would have been affected. In the absence of further information, it was not
possible to quantify those effects.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Municipal Council of Quatre Bornes as at 31 December 2011, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Mauritius.

Emphasis of Matter
Other Balances — Rs 44,361,959

I draw attention to the Item “Other Balances” in the Balance Sheet, which includes a sum of Rs
28,366,851 provided for pension liability prior to year 2008 (Rs 23 million), Sick Leave credit
accumulated (Rs 3,127,788) and Passage Benefits (Rs 2,239,063). These sums represent
additional provisions to meet any shortfall. My opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.






[image: image14.png]With regard to the provision for the pension liability, Council has informed that under the new
Local Government Act, an insurance company will manage its Pension Fund. The latter will
carry out an actuarial valuation regarding the pension liability, and Council will have to meet any
shortfall from its own funds. Under such circumstances, it is wise and prudent that such a
provision is made to finance at least part of the shortfall that will be communicated to Council in
the future.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Management’s Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
described above, management is also responsible for ensuring that the activities, financial
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the laws
and authorities which govern them.

Auditor’s Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility to express an opinion on the financial statements described
above, my responsibility includes expressing an opinion on whether the activities, financial
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are, in all material respects, in
compliance with the laws and authorities which govern them. This responsibility includes
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about whether the agency's expenditure and
income have been applied to the purposes intended by the legislature. Such procedures include
the assessment of the risks of material non-compliance.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion.

Opinion on Compliance
Local Government Act

In my opinion, in all material respects, the activities, financial transactions and information
reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the Local Government Act.
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The Municipal Council of Quatre Bomes is responsible for the planning and conduct of its
procurement. It is also responsible for defining and choosing the appropriate method of
procurement and contract type in accordance with the provisions of the Act and relevant
Regulations. My responsibility is to report on whether the provisions of Part V of the Act
regarding the Bidding Process have been complied with.

In my opinion, the provisions of Part V of the Act have been complied with as far as it appears
from my examination of the relevant records.

(Dr R. JUGURNATH)
Director of Audit

National Audit Office

Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
Port Louis

1 March 2013
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